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1. 'COURT DECISIONS - BOLLLR. BEVERAGES, INC. v. WILLIAM 'HOWE DAVIS s
- DIRECTOR OF THE DIVISION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVLRAGE CONTROL ETC. -
DIRECTOR REVERSED.‘i':. A

b SUPREME COURT OF NLW JERSEY

BOLLER BFVERAGES INC., A 65 September 1961 Term
| Petitioner,' B “

',Jv.'

. WILLIAM HOWE DAVIS, Director of
~ the Division of Alcoholic Beverage
Control, ete.,

L N N . ™ s

Defendant. )
1Argued January 8, 1962. Decided June 29, 1962.
. Mr. Joseph M. Jacobs argued the cause for petitioner.

- Messrs. Harrison dnd Jacobe, attorneys. Mr. Jacobs, of
counsel, ,

Mr. Samuel B. Helfand Deputy Attorney General argued the
cause for defendant. Mr. David D. Furman, Attorney General
of New Jersey, attorney. Mr. Helfand, of counsel.

S The opinion of the Court was delivered by -
HALL J.
‘The Director of the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control
specially ruled that the sale of a brand of corn whiskey was
"1llegal in New Jersey when packaged in Mason or fruit jars. Petitioner,
- & licensed vholesaler of this state handling the product,.
appealed to the Appellate Division, treating the Director'= action
as the final decision of a state administrative agency, R.R. 4:88-8,
and, by the same pleading, considering the action as an adminlstra-
tive rule promulgated by a state agency, sought a review of validity
through the declaratory judgment procedure, R.R. 4:88-10. We cer-
tified.the case on our own motion before hearing in the Appellate
Division. The matter involves important aspects of the powers of the
Director and the manner of exercise thereof.

From the stipulated record we are advised that in 1958 Viking -
Distillery, Inc., of Albany, Georgia, began to manufacture and sell
in interstate commerce a product called "Georgia Moon Corn Whiskey",
‘under the authorized trade name of The Johnson Distilling Co. and.
appropriate federal distiller's basic permit. The whiskey, a color-
- less liquid, was marketed in conventional beverage bottles, having-

a neck and narrow mouth, in two sizes, pint and fifth (4/5ths of
. a quart or 1/5th of a gallon). The labels were also of conventional
style and identified the contents as 90 proof and less than 30 days
0old. - Petitioner, undertaking to sell the product to retailers in
New Jersey, filed with the Director in 1960 the necessary quarterly
.1istings of minimum prices for wholesale and retail sales as pre-
~scribed by his Regulations Nos. 34 and 30. Such listings show the
brand name and the respective prices for the differing size bottles
- in which the product is sold. .
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. In the latter part ‘of 1960 the distiller commence& to market. the
whiskey also in an open mouthed cylindrical bottle with a screw-on
cap, identical in shape with the common Mason or fruit jar. It held "

a fifth and bore an unconventional style label. All federal approvals
required for the new container and label were obtained. Petitioner
started to sell it at wholesale in New Jersey late in 1960 or early
in 1961. "Since the wholesale and retail minimum prices were the same
at inception as for the regular f£ifth, no notice of the new packaging
was glven to the Director. A higher price and difference in proof -
from the conventional bottle were, however; decided upon in the early
part of 1961, which necessitated separate listings. Consequently -
in February of that year petitioner filed listings for the quarter
commencing April 1, specifying one price and proof for "Mason Jar®

" fifths and another for "Regular Bottles."

The brand name "Georgia Moon'" in conjunction with the specific-
ation of the "Mason Jar" container excited the Directort's interest
and he called for further information. His concern arose because a
Mason or fruit jar apparently is the traditional container for
11licit or "moonshine" whiskey, particularly in certain sections of
the country, and the "Georgia Moon" brand name also invoked a similar
connotation. Personal and telephone conversations and letter
communications between petitioner, the distiller and the Director
iolioweda "No formal proceeding was instituted or trial type hearing
) eldo ’ ‘

' The upshot was the ruling complained of,*contained in the
Directorfis letter to petitioner, dated March 1, 1961. Although
disturbed by the connotations of the brand name, he agreed to
continue to accept regular bottle listings thereunder, but concluded
as follows concerning the jar containere _

o The Director finds the Mason Jar objectionable for

a number of reasons, including the fact that 'moonshine!
has been traditionafly packaged in Mason Jjars and he does
not approve of what may have the appearance of illicit
whiskey being sold or dispensed on licensed premises.
Furthermore, this Division has disapproved other containers
which, as in the case of Mason jars, have other utilitarlan
uses, when empty.®

He did not refer to any statutory section or regulation as authority
for the ruling.

In subsequent correspondence, petitioner indicated a desire to
make known "certain facts and concluslons' before %this action is-
closed." The Director in reply, while indicating willingness to
discuss the matter further, direécted the removal of all jar containers
from the New Jersey retail market since their sale was illegal. He
further stated that his decision was not based solely on the fact
that the jar is a refillable container. A later conference took place
but the ruling remained unchanged and this action was commenced
shortly thereafter. The ruling has been complied with pending the
outcome of the litigation.

Prior to the ruling petitioner and the distiller urgedlupon
the Director the federal approval of the new packaging and the fact
that the product was being sold in this fashion in 25 or more states.
They further contended that marketing in the Jar container was "doing
more to combat moon-ghining than all the enforcement agencies com- .
bined" because 1t gave "the normal moon-shine drinker a safe, legal
tax pald product that.is similar to.what he likes to drink", thereby
"competing with his normal supplier, and making [ the moon»hiner's]
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business less profitable." Also submitted to the Director were
magazine articles commenting on the new form of packaging as an
effective sales "gimmick." '

v In response to the Director's initial request for further
informatlon, petitioner furnished him with a label sample, required
as a prerequisite to sale at wholesale or retaill of any alcoholic
beverage by Regulation No. 30, Rule 1. Through error the label
submitted was that for the conventional bottle rather than the one
used on the jar. (No point is made of the mistake.) The jar label
apparently did not come to his attention until after the ruling was
made. Copies are included in the stipulated record and, by agreement,
we have also been furnished with samples of the jar, the ¢ardboard

~carton in which it is placed for retail sales and a pamphlet or-
brochure of drink recipes packed in the carton. At oral argument

we were advised that the Director also finds the label and pamphlet
objectionable and perhaps the carton as well. His objection is

based not only on the comnection of the printed materials with the
Jar type container, but also because he believes them to be lacking
In good taste and unduly designed to stimulate or increase consumption
of alcoholic beverages. We takelt the parties desire that we
consider the Directorfs ruling as if it had banned them as well for
the reasons just recited. Since both phases of the matter involve
the same fundamental issues of administrative power and its exercise,
we are willing to comply with the request despite the irregularity
of the presentation. The fact that the case must turn on these basic
guestions makes umnecessary full description of the printed matter.

Petitioneris first contention is that-a state lacks suthority
to bar the jar container, the label and the other items. The
petition alleges that "the label and container in question has been
approved by the Federal Alcoholic Administration and defendant has no
powver to render illegal in New Jersey the sale of a product which is
permitted on a national basis ...." While the basis of the point is
not clearly articulated, we must assume it to be that, since the
distidler here has met all federal requirements with respect to
bottles and labels of liquor moving in interstate commerce, New
Jersey is barred from imposing further or different regulation of

. the subject because such would violate the Commerce Clause of the
federal Constitution or would be intruding upon a field which the
national government has already exclusively occupied. The contention
necessitates some consideration of the pattern of federal regulation
of alcoholic beverages and its relatiom to state authority.

On the one hand, it is clear that the Twenty-First Amendment
did not give to the states complete and exclusive control over
commerce in intoxicating liquors and that the power. of Congress to
regulate foreign and interstate commerce therein continues except as
modified by the amendment. William Jameson & Co. v. Morgenthau, 25
F. Suppe 771 (D.D.C. 1938), decree vacated on procedural grounds,
307 U.S. 171, 83 L.ed. 1189, 59 S.Ct. 804 (1939); U.S. v. Frankfort
Distilleries, Inc., 324 U.S. 293, 89 L.ed. 951, 65 8.Ct. 661 (1945).
Cf. Motor Cargo, inc. v. Pivision of Tax Appeals, 10 N.J. 580 (1952).
As Mr. Justice Black said in his concurring opinion in _Carter v,
Virginia, 321 U.S. 131, 88 L.ed. 605, 612, 64 S.Ct. 464 (1944),
"Though the precise amount of power [the Amendment] has left in
Congress to regulate liquor under the Commerce Clause has not been
marked out by decisions, this much is settled: local, not national,
regulation of the liquor traffic is now the general constitutional

policy.m
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So, conversely, the Amendment sanciions the right of ‘a state
to legislate concerning alcoholic beverages brought from without,

- unféttered by the Commerce Clause, and bestowed upon the states broad
regulatory powers over the liquor traffic within their borders. '
Ziffrin v. Reeves, 308 U.S. 132, 84 L.ed. 128, 60 8.Ct. 163 (1939);
U.5. vo Frankfort Distilleries, Inc., supra. As the court said in

Ziffring

" Without doubt a state may absolutely prohibit the

- manufacture of intoxicants, their transportation, sale, or
possession, irrespective of when or where produced or obtained,
or the use to which they are to be put. Further, she may
adopt measures reasonably appropriate to effectuate these
inhibitions and exercise full police authority in respect of

then. s .

Having power absolutely to prohibit manufacture, sale,
transportation, or possession of intoxicants; was it permissible
for Kentucky to permit these things only under definitely
prescribed conditions? Former opinions here make an affirm-
ative answer imperative. The greater power includes the
less «.. The state may protect her people against evil -
incident to intoxicants ... and may exercise large discretion

as to means employed." (84 L.ed. at 135).

The concept was expressed in Frankfort Distilleries, Inc., as "the
statets full authority to determine the conditions upon which liquor
can come intoc its territory and what will be done with it after it
gets there ..." (89 L.ed. at 956). 'In terms of the Commerce Clause,
Mr. Justice Frankfurter put the matter this way in his concurring

opinion in the same case:

" . The Twenty-First Amendment made a fundamental change,

as to control of the liquor:. traffic, in the constitutional

relations between the States and national authority. Before

that Amendment--disregarding the interlude of the Eighteenth

Amendment--alcohol was for constitutional purposes treated in

the abstract as an article of commerce Just like peanuts and

potatoes. As a result, the power of the States to control

the liquor traffic was subordinated to the right of free

trade across state lines as embodied in the Commerce Clause.

The Twenty-First Amendment reversed this legal situation

by subordinating rights under the Commerce Clause to the power

of a State to control; and to control effectivelg, the traffic
7).

in liguor within its borders." (89 L.ed. at 95

To turn to the federal statutes and regulations concerning
bottles and labels for packaging distilled spirits: The statute
relating to bottles is contained in the Internal Revenue Code, now
found in 26 U.S8.C.A. § 5301 (Supp. 1962), Pub. L. 85-859, Title II,
§ 201, Sept. 2, 1958, 72 Stat. 1374. It reads:

w Whenever in his judgment such action is necessary to
protect the revenue, the Secretary [of the Treasury] or
his delegate is authorized by the regulations prescribed by
him and permits issued thereunder if required by him--
(1) to regulate the kind, size, branding, marking, _
gnle, resale, possesslon, use, and reuse of containers...
designed or intended for use for the sale of distilled

spirits..." {(emphasis added)

The regulations promulgated pursuant’ thereto, 26 C.F.R. § 175.1 to
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175.123, inclusive, deal comprehensively with the manufacture, marking,
labeling, use and shipment of liguor bottles. No permit is fequired
for the use of any bottle unless it is of unique and distinctive

shape or design, 26 C.F.R. g L75.56 to g 175.59, inclusive, and

only for the purpose of assuring that its wsw will not "afford a
Jeopardy to the revenue." 26 C.F.R. 8 175.57.

It is, therefore, apparent that the object of federal bottle
. regulation is solely to protect the federal revenue, a valid exercise

of national power. U.S. v. Goldberg, 225 F. 24 180 (8th Cir. 1955).
The so-called federal approval of the Mason jar in the instant case.
amounted to nc more than a-declaration that this form of container
was not a distinctive liquor bottle as defined by these revenue-
piotecting regulations and that no special permit was required for
its use. _

Federal control over labels derives from the Federal Alcohol
Administration Act of 1935, 27 U.5.C.A. § 201, et seg. (Supp. 1962).
The statute deals with a variety of matters within the sphere of
national power. It first requires, “Tin order effectively to regulate
interstate and foreign commerce in distilled spirits, wine, and malt
beverages, to enforce the twenty-first amendment, and to protect the
revenue and enforce the postal laws wlth respect to distilled spirits,
wine and malt beverages " (g 203), a2 basic permit from the Secretary of
the Treasury, inter alia, to engage in the business of
distilling spirits, § 203 and 204. The provisions respecting labeling,
and comparable ones dealing with advertising, are found in g 205, the
- purpose and intended scope of which are plain from the captions
"Unfair competition and unlawful practices.® The section also
regulates exclusive outlets, the "tied house", commercial bribery
and consignment sales., One aim of these latter provisions has been
defined to be the prohibition of practices analogous to those pro-
scribed by the federal anti-trust laws. Black v. Magnolia Liguor
Coey 355 UeB. R4, 2 L.ed. 24 5, 78 8.Ct. 106 (1957).

The labeling provisions in subsection (e) thereof make it
unlawful to sell, ship or deliver in Iinterstate or foreign commerce
"any distilled spirits, wine or malt beverages in bottles, unless such
products are bottled, packaged, and labeled in conformity with such
regulations, to he prescribed. by the Secretary of the Treasury, wilith
respect to packaging, marking, branding, and labeling and size and
fi1ll of container® as will, in specified particulars, protect the
‘consumer from deception and prohibit unfailr practices. The fundamental
purpose 1is obvicusly to require the furnishing-of full and accurate
information to the consumer as to the exact nature, quality and

uvantity of the product. William Jameson & Co. v. Morgenthau, supra
25 Fo_Supp. 771); Continental Distilling Corporation v. Humphrey, 247
- F.2d 796 ED.Qﬁglgo 1957). The implementing regulations, 27 C.F.R.
§ 5.1, et seq., deal with the particulars mentioned in the statute
n great detail and provide that no person shall bottle distilled
spirits or remove the same from his plant without first obtaining a
"Certificate of Label Approval® evidencing that the label complies
with all requirements of the regulations. 27 C.F.R. g§ 5.50.
Petitioner's approval of the label affixed to the jar container,
therefore, goes no further than evidencing compliance with these
- standards imposed only for the purposes mentioned in the valid exercise

of federal authority.

In view of the vast reservoir of power bestowed upon the states
to regulate the liquor traffic and protect against its evils within -
their borders pretty much as they see fit, we can see no sound reason
why additional state regulation of bottles and labels to further
legitimate local policy could be said to run afoul of the Commerce
Clause of the federal Constitution., While no reported decision in-
volving the precise question has been found, the United States Supreme
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Court has gone to great lengths in sustaining other highly restric-
tive state regulstion which undoubtedly greatly affected interstate,
commerce. State Board of Fqualization v. Young's Market Co., 299 U.S.
59, 81 L.ed. 38, 57 8.Ct. 77 (1936); Mahoney v. Joseph Triner Corp.,
304 U.8, 401, 82 L.ed. 1424, 58 S.ct. 952 (1938); Indianapolis Brewing
Co. v. Ligcuor Control Com., Mich., 305 U.S. 391, 83 L.ed. 243, 59
S.Ct. 254 (1939); Joseph 5. Finch & Co. v. MeKittrick, 305 U.S,
395, 83 L.ed. 246, 59 S.Ct., 256 (1939); Ziffrin v. Reeves, supra (84
L.ed. 128); Carter v. Virginia, supra (88 L.ed. 605). This court'’s
declsion in the factually very different case of Motor Cargo, Inc. '
v. Division of Tax Appeals, supra (10 N.J. 580) does not suggest the,
contrary. Nor do the federal bottle and label regulations earlier
summarized, considering their limited nature and purpose, ‘amount to
federal occupation of the field fo the exclusion of state action,
even 1f that concept has any proper place here, a subject which we
need not consider. Again no exact precedent has been located, but
‘decisions in other states lend support to the conclusion. In Terre
Haute Brewing Co, v. Liguor Control Comm., 291 Mich, 73, 288 N.W.
339 (1939), the WMichigan Supreme Court upheld the action of that
state's authorities in refusing state approval of a federally approved
label used by an out-cof-state brewer because it was too much like. one
already authorized for a local manufacturer, an item not covered by
the federal regulations. Cf. State v. Patterson, 133 Conn. 345, 51
A.2d 141 (1947). In neither case does it appear that any federal
question was raised. One can only surmise it was thought such a
contention would be toc lacking in merit, ‘

The states not being federally precluded from additional

- regulation of hottles and labels in furtherance of state policies

and interests, the next and decisive question is whether New Jersey.
has exercised regulstory power over these items so as to ground solidly
enough the Directorfs ruling under review. Petitioner claims that '
-nedither the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, R.S. 33:1-1, et seqg., .
nor any general rule or regulation promulgated by the Director there-
under furnishes the necessary basis and that his "special ruling"®

is nothing but an ad hoc administrative determination without adequate
foundation and therefore an improper exercise of administrative power.
The Director replies that his action, even if not springing from any
particular statutory section or regulation, finds sanction in the

Sui generis nature of alcoholic beverage control, in his sweeping
discretionary power te carry out the broad purposes expressed in the
statute and, mere particularly, in the explicit authority given him

by R.S. 33:1-39 to "make . . . speclal rulings and findings."

In considering the question presented, it is important to
have in mind the purpeses of alcoholic beverasge regulation in this
state and the scheme of control which has been set up to carry out
those policies. And in this field; one always starts with the proposi-
tion that the business, as prone to evils; is one not of right and is
peculiarly subject to strict governmental control in every phase.
Therefore the authority to regulate is broadly said to be practically
limitless. Franklin Stores Co. v. Burnett, 120 N.J.L. 596, 598
(Sup.Ct, 1938); Hudson Bergen County Retail Liquor Stores Association
v. Hoboken, 135 N.J.L, 503 (£ & A 1947); Mazza v. Cavicchia, 15
N.J. 498, 505~506 (1954); X-L Liquors v. Taylor, 17 N.J. 4k, 449
T1955); Fanwood v. Rocco. 33 Nads 404, 411-412 (1960)- ,

The act, adopted in 1933 upon repeal of the Lighteenth Amend-
ment, in an early section succinctly specifies the aims and objects of
state regulation, "to promote temperance and eliminate the racketeer
and bootlegger', R.S. 33:1-3, and concludes by stating that it "is in-
tended to be remedial of abuses inherent in liquor traffic and shall
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' be 1iberally construed”, R.S. 33:1-73. Parenthetically, 1t may be
" observed that these purposeo have quite a different orientation from

those underlying federal.regulation. jﬁ

\

The statute provides for the details of regulation by two
methods. First, it specifies with particularity how many of the varied
aspects of the business shall be conducted and controlled. Second, it
reposes in the Director legislative power to fill in the gaps and add
to the precise statutory mandates through the exercise of comprehensive
rule-making powers, R.8. 33:1-39, 39.1 and 39.2. These powers enable '
the Director to effectively carry out his duty "to supervise, the
manufacture, distribution and sale of alcoholic beverages in such a

"manner” as to accomplish the objects of the law, R.S. 33:1-3, "to
administer and enforce" the chapter, and "to do, perform, take and
adopt all other acts, procedures and methods designed to insure the
fair, impartial, stringent and comprehensive administration" thereof,

R.S8. 33: l~g3.

The delegation of rulemmaking authority is broad indeed.
Section 39 spells it out: "The [ Director] may make such general rules
and regulations and such special rulings and findings as may be ;
necessary for the proper regulation and control ¢f the manufacture,
sale and distribution of alcoholic beverages and the enforcement of
this chapter, in addition thereto, and not inconsistent therewith..."
It then goes on in a second paragraph to specify some 30 detailed
categories which general rules and regulztions may cover, some of
which relate to matters also the subject of specific statutory sections
and others of which are not otherwise mentioned in the act, and
winds up with sweeping authority to promulgate regulations relating to
"practices unduly designed to increase consumption of alcoholic
beverages . . . and such other matters whatsoever as are or may become
necessary in the fair, impartial, stringent and comprehensive
administration” of the law. The Director has exercised this power
fully through the making of voluminous regulations and the courts have
consistently and sympathetically sustained them in view of the nature
and inherent evils of the business, the policles and alms expressed
by the legislature and the broad grant of authority. E.g., X-L '
Liguors v._Taylor, supra (17 N.J. 444); Mazza v. Cav1cchiag supra
(15 NoJ. at 506-509)

The theory of administrative rule-making is, of course,

that in certain fields and in certain respects the public interest
is better served by delegating a largc part of detailed law-making to

. the expert administrator, controlled by policies, objects and standards
laid down by the legislature, rather than by having all the details .
spelled out through the traditional legislative process. Adminis-
trative rule-making remains in essence, however, the enactment of

- legislation of general application prospectlve in nature. The object
is not legislation ad hoc or after the fact, but rather the promul-

: gatlon, through the basic statube and the implementing regulations
taken as a unitary whole, of a code governing action and conduct in
the particular field of regulation so those concerned may know in
advance all the rules of the game, so to speak, and may act with reason-
able assurance. Without sufficiently definite regulations and
standards administrative control lacks the essential quality of fairly
predictable decisions. Persons subject to regulation are entitled
to something more than a general declaration of statutory purpose
to guide their conduct before they are restricted or penalized by an
‘agency for what it then decides was wrong from its hindsight conception
of what the public interest requires in the particular situation.
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- Reverting to the precise question before us, we have no
doubt that New Jersey may, by legislation or general rule, reasonable
regulate bottles and labels in furtherance of any of the general
statutory purposes or pursuant to any specific statutory provision..
But the question is,-has it done so? We are not referred to any
specific provision of the aet dealing with elther subject nor do we
find any regulation concerning bottles. The Director has, however,
legislated with respeet to labels, By Regulation 24, he says that
federal reguldations relating to labeling "are made a part hereof and
shall also. apply to alcohollc heverages packaged purely for intrastate
shipment within New Jersey." We take it this means that he has adopted
the federal regulations as his own and has gone no further. There is,
of course, no contention that the label in question transgresses the-
federal enactment in any particular. In passing it may be noted
that no warrant for the Director's action here may be found under his
regulations requiring the listing of minimum resale prices before any -
alcoholic beverage may be sold in the state at wholesale or retail. '
These regulations mske no reference to any requirements as to the
packaging of bheverages and have for their only object the promotion
of temperance and the prevention of undue stimulation of sales; goals
almed at by prohibition of indiscriminate price cutting. Butler
Qak Tavern v. Division of Alcoholic Beverage Comtrol, 20 N.J. 373, 385
(1956); Duff v. Irenton Beverage CO., 4 Ned. 595, 608 (1950). We must
conclude there is no statutory provision which itself directly governs

noy is there an implfonting regulation which can ground the Director's
action in this case.

: - This brings us to the Director?s principal reliance, -~
the power to make Yspecial rulings and findings® given him by R.S.
33:1-39, previously quoted. He urges in effect that this provision giwve
him aunthority to legislate on a case-to-case basis, as distinet from
the method of general prospective rules and regulations, at least in all
those categories of eontrol which section 39 thereafter specifies
as proper subjects of general regulations., As has been pointed our
the latter categorization is so sweeping as to. be practically all
encompassing. We cannot agree with the Directorfs thesis.

g The scope of "special rulings and findings® is not at all
clear, but it 1s not necessary here that we precisely define the full
boundaries. It is enough to decide whether the instant situation is
legitimately included within them. The term is not found, so fer as
we have been able to discover, in any other of our administrative

- agency statutes. and this appears to be the first case in which 1its
meaning has been involved. First let it be said that on the face of
the statute itself we are unable to divine a legislative intent to
empower ad hoc law making in the categories In which the promulgation
of general rules and regulations is authorized. The paragraph of the
section listing such categories refers only to "rulées and regulations®
and makes no mention of %special rulings and findings."

(I) Since the ruling in question the Director has promulgated Rule 6
of Regulation No. 21 which provides that -

No manufacturer, importer, wholesaler or retailer shall include
in any advertising material or other advertisement, dlrectly or
indirectly, in any manner or by any means, device or medium;

* % #*

. (b) Any statement, design, device, matter or representation
which 1s obscene or indecent or which is obnoxious or offensive
to the commonly and generally accepted standards of fitness and
good taste; : '

* % * ,
{n) Any statement of a nature which fosters or tends to
foster or encourage intemperance; .
* * *

The question is not raised as to the effect of this rule on the pamphle

' ’ ' : ‘ for
of drink recipes packed in the carton with the liquor jar. 'We there \
express no opinion on the validity of the rule or its applicability hel
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: We recognize full well that by the very nature of the adminis-
trative process, including as it does both legislative and executive
functions in one body or person, and in the necessary day-to-day working
of that process, an agency is confronted continually with requests for
concrete interpretation or construction of its regulations and for
advance views on whether certain proposed conduct or activity is per-
missible, which most agencies respond to as a matter of routine. On
his own initiative, the administrator may also find it important to
issue more detalled interpretations or applications of the statute

. and his regulations for the future guidance of all persons who may be
affected., (We are speaking of so-called rulings which have sufficilent
formality and dignity to go beyond the point of what have been called:
advisory opinions, though the line may be shadowy. See Rutherford
Lodge No. 547 v._Hock, 1 N.J. Super. 223 {(App. Div. 1949); Passaic
County Retail Liquor Dealers Association v. Board of Aleocholic Bever-
age Control, 37 N.J. Super. 187, 194-197 (App.Div. 1955).) And this
kind of ruling may partake of both rule making and adjudication, thus
fuzzing over two theoretically distinct processes., See In re ~
Port Murray Dairy Co., 6 N.J. Super. 285, 293 (App. Div. 1950). It is

. also of interest to note that this power has been viewed as Inherent
in the administrative process or arising by necessary implication and
is not dependent on express statutory grant. 1 Dayvis, Adminlstrative Law
Treatise 271 (1958), citing klectrolux Corp. v. Millier, 286 N.¥. 390,

36 N.E. 2d 633 (1941). ~ -

" Highly desirable it is, in the interest of convenient, expedi-
;tious and efficient administration, that this sensible course of
c‘action he permitted full rein. See Central Home Trust Co. v. Gough,
5. N.J. Buper, 295, 300 (#pp.Div. 194Y). We think the type of
administrative action we have been discussing certainly falls within
the permissible scope of ¥special ruling". Perhaps we should add
that such rulings are, moreoverg«subgect to judicial review, cf.
Kravis v. Hock, 136 N.J.L. 161, 164 (E & A 1947); City of Passale
v. Kingsley, 47 N.J. Super. 265, 268 (App. Div, 1957), cert. den.
26 N.J. 170 (1958), and that if the ruling is directed-at a specific
situation involving a single interest, the dissatisfied party should
also be first entitled to a2 trial type hearing 1in the agency, if he
desires it, before attacking the ruling in the courts. Cf, Bechler
v. Parsekian, 36 N.J. 242 (1961). . ‘

What the Director has dome in the instant case, however, goes
far beyond the type of administrative action mentioned and any
acceptable scope or exercise of this nebulous power. <YThis was not a
requéest by an interested party for an advance view of legality or an
interpretation or construction of an existing statute or regulation
of general application. It amounts to ad hoc legislation and a
simultaneous determination of violation thereof in a particular
situation, on the Director's own initiative and without a trial type
hearing, where prior thereto the alleged transgression had not been
covered or proscribed by statute or regulation. See Mitchell v.
Cavicchia, 29 N.J. Super. 11, 15 (App.Div. 1953). Whatever are the
outer limits of Uspeciel ruling or finding%, this is not within them;
and for sound reason. As has already been pointed out, 1t is the
antithesis of 'legislation to make law from case to case and after the
fact. Where an administrative agent is glven full rule making power,
‘he must in all fairness, bottom an alleged violation on general
legislation before he may rule in a particular case. The general
mandate, either statutory or administrative, must precede the
specifice violation. Cf. Kravis v. Hock, supra (136 N.J.L. 161),

The ruling cannot be sustained. ~ A
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T : - 8ince the Director has not legislated ‘to cover the instant K
situatiun9 it would be inappropriste for us to advise or speculate-* '
-concerning what would constitute valid regulation of the subject
-matter. That question can only be determined on review of any
pertinent rules hereafter promulgated. It is therefore unnecessary
“to consider petitioner's arguments that the Director's ruling was .
factually arbitrary and that the reasons he gave therefor were without
sound basis, as well ‘as the contention that it was denied due process
‘because the ruling wae made without a trial type hearing. R

The action of the Director is set asidee

2. DISCI?LENABY PE@C?EDING& ~ SALE T0 A MTNOR - SALE IN VIOLATION OF
~ SBTATE REGULATION NO. 38 - EMPLOYING FEMALE BARTENDER - INDECENT. LANGU
- LICENSE SUSPENDED FOR 45 DAYS, LESS 5 FOR PLEA. - :

In the Hatter of DjSLlplinary
Proceedimgs against

Lincoln Imn (A Corp.)

t/a Lincoln Inn o :
CONCLUSIONS

1430 = 70th Street
North Bergen, New Jersey
, - -AND
Holder of Plenary Retail Consumption :
License C-47, issued by the Board of ORDER

Alcoholic Beverage Control of the
Township of North Bergen.

o GO we am UP e em R £ W OB ) e A e @e o e g e

R’ W’ R Ve e’ e’

TLicenéee9 Pro se.
Edward F. Ambrose, Esq., Appearing for Division of Alcoholic Beverage
' Control.

BY THE DIRECTOR

Licensee pleads guilty to cherges alleging that (1) on
May 16-17, 1962, it scld drinks of alcoholic beverages to an 18=year-
.0ld minorg in violation of Rule 1 of State Regulation No. R0; (2)
on May 13, 16 and 17, 1962, it sold .cans of beer for off-premises consu
tion, in violation of Rule 1 of State Regulation No. 38; (3) -on May
17, i9629 it employed a female bartender, in violation of local regu-
letion, and (4) on May 16-17, 1962, it permitited patrons to use foul,
£ilthy and ebscere language, *in violatlon of Rule 5 of State. Regulation

No. 20.

. Absent prior record, the license will be suspended on the
first charge for fifteen days (Re Mondello, Bulletin 1426, Item %),
on the second charge for fifteen days (Re Sabo, Bulletin 1449, Item 3),
‘on the third charge for five days (Ré_Gray, Bulletin 1384, Item 7),
and on the fourth charge for ten days (Re Karelitz & Fishbone, Bulletin
1446, Item 6}, or a total of forty-five days, with remission .of five
days for the plea entered, leaving a net suspension.of forty days.

Accordingly, it is, on ‘this 13th day of June, 1962

: ORDERED. that Plenary Retail Consumption License: 0-47
issued by the Municipal Board of Alcoholic Beverage Control-of the
Township of North Bergen to Lincoln Inn (A Corp.), t/a Lincoln Inn,
for premises 1430 ~ 70th Street, North Bergen, be and the same 1is herelb:
suspended for the balance of 1ts term, effective 3:00 a.m., Wednesday,
June 20, 1962; and it is further : ,

- ORDERED that any renewal license that may be granted shall
= and the same 1s hereby suspended until 3:00 a. mq, Monday, July 30
19620 ‘ . ,
WILLIAM HOWE DAVIS
DIRECTOR
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3. DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS - FALSE ANSWER IN APPLICATION - FRONT FOR
" NON-* RESIDENTS - LICENSE SUSPENDED FOR BALANCE OF TERM WITH LEAVE

TO APPLY FOR ORDER LIFTING SUS:ENSION AFTER EXPIRATION OF 20 DAYS
IF ILLEGAL SITUATION CORRLCTLD. : ,

In the Matter of Disciplinary
Proceedings against

)
Lucy M. Rosetto )
. Bxecutrix Estate of Carmen Rosetto o '
430 Route 46 ) CONCLUSIONS
. South Hackensack, New Jersey '
) AND

- Holder of Plenary Retail Consumption '
.License C-4, issued by the Townshlp ) -~ ORDER
Committee of the Township of South 1 o
;uHackensack.. )

f Louis Kraemer, Esq.' Attorney for 1icensee. ‘ o o
'vDavid S. Piltzer, Esq. Appearing for the Div1sion of . . A
S Alcoholic Beverage Control. o

| BY:THE‘DIBECTOR:
Licensee pleads non vult to the followinc charges. ‘M |

nl. In the application dated May 25, 1961, filed with
the Township Committee of South Hackensack on
May 26, 1961 by the late Carmen Rosetto, your
- ‘ predecesaor licensee from whom your current

plenary retail consumption license was extended
on December 8, 1961, upon which said Carmen

- Rosetto obtained renewal of said license for
~the current licensing ve“r,-Sdii‘Carmen Rosetto
Talsely stated 'No! in answer to yuestion No.
30, which asks: ‘'Has any 1nd1v1dua1, partner-

" ship, ﬂorporation or assooietion, other than

- the applicant, any interest, directly or
indirectly, in the license applied for or in
the business to be conducted under said 1li-

- cense?', whereas in truth and fact Michael =

" Rlzzo, Frank Vanadia and Jerry Castellone had
such an .interest in that they were part owners
of said business; sdid false statement being
in violation of R.S. 33:1- 25

‘"2, From December 14, 1961 to datey you knowingly
alded and abetted Michael Rizzo, Frank Vanadia ’
“and Jerry Castellone to exercise, contrary to - .
. ReSe. 33:1-26, the rights and privileges of your:
. plenary retail consumption 1icense, in viola-ﬂ=
',tion of R.S. 33:1-52." '

- ." The: facts are sufficiently" set forth in the quoted charges
.~when in addition, it is noted that, as appears from reports of -
: investigation, Rizzo, Vanadia and Castellone, the undisclosed

'partners, are non-residents of New Jersey. = .

S To date, no correctlon of the unlawful situation has been .
._accomplished.
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Absent prior record, the license will be suspended for

the balence of 1ts term and any renewal license that may be granted
will be likewise suspended for the bilance of its term, with leave
granted to the licensee or any bona fide transferee of the license

to apply for the lifting of the suspension whenever the unlawful:
situation has been corrected, but inno event sooner than twenty days
from the date of commencement of the suspenslion herein. Cf¢ Re A. & L.
Inc., Bulletion 1216, Item 5, L

Accordingly, 1t is, on thls 12th day of June, 1962,

ORDFRLD that Plenary Hetail Consumption License C-4,
issued by the Township Committee: of the Township of South Hackensack to
Lucy M. Rosetto, Executrix sstate of Carmen Rosetto, for premises 430
~Route 46, South Hackensack, be and the same 1s hereby suspended for the
balance of its term, effectlve 3:00 a.m., Tuesday, June 19, 1962; and
it is further o

ORDERED that in the event any renewal license 1is granted,
such license shall be and the same is hereby suspended for the balance
of its term, with leave to the licensee or any bona fide transferee of
the licensee to file verified petition es%ablisﬁing correction of the
unlawful situation for lifting of the suspension of the license on or
after 2:00 a.m., Mondays July 99 1962u

WILLTAM HOWE DAVIS
DIRECTOR

he SEIZURE - FORFuITURE PROCELDINGS ~ CLAIM OF OWNER FOR RETURN OF
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES HERrTOFOHE DRCLARED ILLICIT BECAUSE ILLEGALLY
TRANSPORTED REJECTED - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ORDERED FORFEITED.

In the Matter of the Seizure . Case No. 10,707

on March 3, 1961 of two cases = =

of whiskey and a pint bottle o On Hearing -

of wine from Bill's B. Bar, ,

783 Spruce Street, in the City ¢ CONCLUSIONS and ORDER

of Camden, County of Camden ' 8

and State of New Jersey. 8

Bill's B. Bar, by Marvin Mazer9 claimant.

Ie Edward Amada, Esq., appearing for the Division of Alcoholic
Beverage Control.

BY THL DIRECTOR‘

This matter comes before me pursuant to the provisions of
Title 33, Chapter 1, Revised Statutes of New Jersey, and State Regulati
No. 28, to determlne whether two cases of whiskey and a pint bottle of
wine, described in a schedule annexed hereto, seized on March 3, 1961
at the intersection of South 9th Street and Morgan Boulevard, Camden,
New Jersey, constitute unlawful property and should be forfeited.

When the matter came on for hearing pursuant to R.S. 33: 1—66
an appearance was entered on behalf of Bitll's B. Bar, Inc., the owner
of the said alcoholic beverages which sought its return.

: The facts upon which this action was grounded are set forth
in detalil in the matter of disciplinary proceedings against Bill's B.
Bar, Bulletin 1314, Item 4. In the Conclusions and Order of that case,
Tt™Was determined that Bill's B. Bar transported the within deséribed
alcoholic beverages in a vehicle which did not have a transit insignia
affixed thereto, or an inscription painted thereon, in violation of
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Rule 2 of Regulation No. 17.

Hence, the alcohollc beverages so found constitute 11licit
alcoholic beverages, and thus unlawful property, subject to forfeiture.
Seizure Case No. 10, 157, Bulletin 1336, Item 6 and Seizure Case No.

8609, Bulletin 1029, Item 9.

Marvin Mazer, a stockholder of the claimant, B111*s B, Bar,
testifying in its behalf, stated that the only reason that claimant
- 1s seeking the return of these articles is that it was penalized and
“suffered a great financial loss in the disciplinary proceedings. He
- therefore feels that in view of the previous penalty9 this merchandise
should be returned to it.

: This does not appear to be a valid reason or basis for the -

return of the selzed property. Forfeiture may be waived pursuant to.

R.S. 33:1-66 (e) if I am sdtisfied that the transporter acted in good

faith and unknowingly violated the law. On the basis of the facts in

this case I am not satisfied that such was the case. A careful examin-

ation of the entire file and the record of this claimant persuades me

. that the transporter did not act in good faith and in unknowing violation
- of the law. Therefore relief from forfeiture should be denied. R.S.

33:1-1(i and y), R.S. 33:1-2, and R.S. 33: 1-66. Seizure Case Noa 10, 202,

Bulletin 1349, Item 2o _

Accordingly, it is on thils 2lst day of June5 1962

DETERMINED and ORDERED that the seized alcoholic beverages, :
“deseribed in Schedule ®AW, attached hereto, constitute unlawful property,. .
'and- the same be and hereby are forfeited in accordance with the provisions
- of ReSes 33:1-66, and that they be retained for the use of hospitals and
state, county and municipal institutlons, or destroyed in whole or = .-
- in part, at the direction of the Director of the Division of Alcoholic

Beverage Controlg

WILLIAM HOWE DAVIS
DIRECTOR =

' SCHEDULE “A“

2 - cases of whiskey
1l - pint bottle of wine

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS - SALE TO A MINOR - ALLEGED MITIGATION «j I
LICENSE SUSPENDED FOR 15 DAYS, LESS 5 FOR PLEA ”

In the Matter of. Dlsciplinary )
Proceedings against

: Lark?s Liquor Store Inc.
96 French Street

 CONCLUSIONS
New Brunswick, N. J. :

)
)
~ AND
g ‘ ) ORDER
Holder of Plenary Retail Distri-
bution License D=5, issued by }
the Board of Commissioners of
the City of New Brunswick. )
Anthony N. Arico, Esq., Attorney for Licensee.
Edward F. Ambrose, Esq., Appearing for the Divislon of Alcoholic
_ Beverage Control.

BY THE DIRECTOR:

Licensee pleads non vult to a charge alleging that on
May 4, 1962, it sold twelve quart bottles of beer tc an l8-year-old

"minor, in violatlon of Rule 1 of State Regulation No. 20.



PAGE 14 BULLETIN 1467

In attempted mitigation, llcensee claims that the sale
wag made in reliance on false identificatlion produced by the:
‘minor on a previous occasion. As to this, 1t is pointed out that
réliance on false identification, in the absence of obtaining requisi
written representation of age, as contemplated by R.S. 33:1-77, con-
stitutes no defense and very little mitigation. Re One Twenty Eight,
Inc., Bulletin 1451, Item 4. At best, it bespeaks the imposition of
the established minimum penalty imposed in age-similar cases, perhaps
without possible increase for aggravating circumstances. Re H. P.
Bar & Liguor, Inc., Bulletin 1453, Item 5. ‘

Absent prior record, the license will be suspended for
the established minimum period of fifteen days (Re Mondello, Bulletin

1426, Item 4), with remission of five days for the plea entered, :
. 1eav{ng a net suspension of ten days.

Accordingly, it is, on this 12th day of June, 1962,

ORDERED that Plenary Retall Distribution License D-5, issued
by the Board of Commissiomners of the City of New Brunswick to Lark's
Liquor Store Inec. for premises 96 French Street, New Brunswick, be
and the same 13 hereby suspended for ten (10) days, commencing at 9:00
A, M. Monday, June 18, 1962, and terminating at 9:0C A. M. Thursday,
June 28, 1962, ’ .

WILLIAM HOWE DAVIS
DIRECTOR

6. SEIZURE - FORFEITURE PROCEEDINGS - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES "BORROWED"
FROM ANOTHER RETAILER DETAINED AS YEVIDENCE®" - RETURNED TO OWNER,
WHERE NO DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED.

In the Matter of the Seizure Q
on September 28, 1960 of two

o2

cases of whiskey at Billt's B. On Hearing
Bayr, 783 Spruce Street, in the :
City of Camden, Coumty of CONCLUSIONS and ORDER

Camden and State of New Jersey. ¢ .
0600309060&009006@300506{0000@DBGG

Bill¥s B. Bar, by Marvin Mazer, claimant.
I. BEdward Amada, Esq., appearing for the Division of Alcoholic
' Beverage Control,

BY THE DIRECTOR:

This matter comes before me pursuant to R.S. Title 33, Chapte:
1, Revised Statutes of New Jersey, to determine whether two cases of
.whiskey described in a schedule attached hereto, Seized on September
28, 1960 from Billts B. Bar, a Corporation, at 783 Spruce Street,
Camden, N.J., constitute unlawful property and should be forfeited.

When the matter came on for hearing, pursuant to R.S. 33:1-66,
an appearance was entered on hehalf of the sald claimant, which sought
the return of the said alcoholic beverages. The facts, briefly, are
that on September 28, 1960, ABC agents made 'a routine check of the open
stock of the claimant's premises, and detained as evidence two cases -
of the alcohollc beverages, as set forth in the schedule annexed hereto
which the licensee allegedly borrowed from another retailer.

At the time that these cases were so detained by the ABC
agents, the official receipt had noted thereon the legend, "To be
returnedl® It was thereafter determined by thls Division on the basis
of 1ts investlgation, that institution of disciplinary proceedings was
not warranted, and the matter was disposed of by a warning letter,
dated January 31, 1961. \ : :
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Marvin Mazer, a stockholder and manager of the claimant
corporation, in explanation of this transaction, stated.that
the corporation had alterations made to his premises, and the
‘Tecelpt for this merchandise was misplaced. He admitted that
he was not fully acqualnted with the law regarding "the
~borrowing of alcoholic beverages from another retajler®, and
- had, in fact, borrowed the said alcoholic beverages from hig
‘ father who was 8 licensee in the same community.

The Director has the discretionary authority to return
-alcoholic beverages in such cases where the facts Jjustify their
return. R.S. 33:1-66(f). In view of the fact that the whiskey
was detained as evidence, and of the determination not to institute
disciplinary proceedings herein, I shall grant the request of the
claimant for the return of the said alcoholic beverages., Cf. Selzure
Case No. 10,157, Bulletin 1336, Item 6.

Accordingly, it is DETHRMINED and ORDERED that the alco-
holic beverages set forth in Schedule "A%, annexed hereto be and the
same shall be returned to Bill's B Bar, a Corporation.

WILLIAM HOWE DAVIS
DIRECTOR

Dated: June 25, 1962
| | SCHEDULE "A®

1 - case of Seagram's Seven - 4/5 quarts
1 - case of Seagram“s VO -~ 4/5 quarts

‘7.  DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS - SALE IN VIOLATION OF RULE 1 OF
ST%TE REGULATION NO. 38 - LICENSE SUSPENDED FOR 15 DAYS, LESS
5 FOR PLEA.

In the Matter of Diseiplinary
Proceedings against

CONCLUSIONS
Mary Falinski AND
t/a Stanley's Tavern ORDER

482 Main Street
Paterson, New Jersey

Holder of Plenary Retail Consumprion
License C=322, issued by the

Board of Alcoholic Beverage Control
for the City of Paterson.

- R R @S ) sy wh e WO e o me  wp m@ R GO oh e ok

Licensee, Pro se.
Edward F. Ambrose, Ksq., Appearing for the Division of Alcoholic
~ Beverage Control.

S N N’ e e

BY THE DIRECTOR:

: Licensee pleads gullty to a charge alleging that on June 9,
1962, at 10:35 P. M., she sold a half pint bottle of liqueur for off-
premises consumption, in violation of Rule 1 of State Regulation No.

38.
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. Absent prior record, the lieense will be suspended for .
fifteen days, with remission of five days for the plea éntered,
leaving a net suspension~of ten dayso Re Sabo, Bulletin 1449,
Item 3. :

Accordingly, it is, on this 25th day of June, 1962,

ORDERED that Plenary Retail Consumption License C-322,
issued by the Board of Alcoholic Beverage Control for the City
. of Paterson to Mary Falinski, t/a Stanley's Tavern, for premises
482 Main Street, Paterson, be and the same is. hereby suspended
for ten (10) days commencing at 3:00 A. M. Monday, July 2, 1962,
and terminating at 3:00 A. M. Thursday, July 12, 1962.

WILBEAMTHOWETDAVIS-
DIRECTOR

8. STATE LICENSES - NEW APPLICATION FILED,

Breton Woods Beverage Distributors, Inc.
1712 State Highway #88
Laurelton, New Jersey
Application filed August 15, 1962 for
place-to~place transfer of State
Beverage Distributor's License SBD-217
from 53-55 Lewis Street, Paterson, New Jersey.

(ST M‘\

William Howe Davis
Director

New Jersey State Library



